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INTRODUCTION

"no information was gained”
-Dr. Louis Elterman

"objects are sighted in some number”
-from the White Sands Film report to
Dr. Anthony Mirarchi

ASKANIA CINETHEODOLITES AT THE WHITE SANDS PROVING GROUND

ZERO HOUR! Viking No. 12
Is off toward the lonosphere.
“She’s a good misslle!” cries
outl the Flight Salety Conirol
man through the loudspeakers,

PROLOGUE

In December, 1948 a new and strange phenomenon began to be observed repeatedly in
the southwestern United States in areas where Top Secret nuclear weapon research was
being carried out. Particular areas were around Los Alamos, New Mexico, Sandia Base near
Albuquerque, New Mexico, the White Sands Proving Ground in NM and, eventually around the
nuclear weapon storage site called Killeen Base at Fort Hood, Texas.

This phenomenon consisted of (generally) bright green lights moving (generally)
horizontally through the night sky and then dropping downward slightly and
going out. These became to be known as "green fireballs." After these had been observed



many times in late 1948 and early 1949 Dr. Lincoln La Paz, a famous meteoricist (a scientist

who studies meteors and meteorites), declared that they weren't normal meteors. He told

the Air Force and the FBI (see Appendix) that if these weren't special devices resulting from our own (United
States) secret research, then they could be Russian and in any event were a potential threat

to our "vital installations" (FBI terminology) where nuclear weapon research was carried out.

These fireballs were observed repeatedly throughout 1949 and Air Force scientists
wanted to know what they were. (Also observed were objects which Dr. La Paz called the "disc
variation"...but it almost seems that the Air Force scientists really didn't want to know
what THEY were!) Finally, in 1950, they succeeded in setting up an observation program to
scientifically record the fireballs. It is at this point that our present story begins, but,
before leaving the fireballs behind, let me just point out that they are STILL a mystery!

INTRODUCTION

In the spring of 1950 a $20,000, half-year contract was signed with the Land-Air
Corporation which operated the phototheodolites at White Sands. Land-Air was to set up a 24
hour watch at a location in New Mexico to be specified by the Air Force and the phototheodolite
operators at White Sands were to film any unusual objects which happened to fly past. The
name of this project was Twinkle.

The investigation began on March 24, 1950. By this time there had been many sightings
in the southwest according to the sighting catalogue compiled by Lt. Col. Rees of the 17th
District Office of Special Investigations at Kirtland, AFB, many of them around Holloman Air
Force Base. His catalogue shows the following data for New Mexico in 1949: the area of Sandia
Base (Albuquerque) - 17 sightings, mostly in the latter half of the year; Los Alamos area - 26
sightings spread throughout the year; Vaughn area - none; Holloman AFB/Alamogordo/White Sands
area - 12; other areas in southwest New Mexico- 20; total - 75. For the same areas in the
first three months of 1950 there were: Sandia - 6 (all in February); Los Alamos - 7; Vaughn
- 1; Holloman AFB/Alamogordo/White Sands - 6; others - 6; total - 26. With all these
sightings, the scientists were quite confident that they could "catch" a fireball or a saucer.

On February 21 an observation post, manned by two people, was set up at Holloman with a
theodolite, telescope and camera. The post was manned only from sunrise to sunset. The
observers saw nothing unusual during a month of operation. Then the scientists decided to
begin a constant 24 hour watch on the first of April that would last for six months, with Land-
Air personnel operating cinetheodolites (theodolites with movie cameras) and with Holloman AFB
personnel manning spectrographic cameras and radio frequency receivers. Thus began Project
Twinkle with the high hopes of solving the fireball/saucer mystery.

-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

SIGHTINGS BY OBSERVERS OF SUPERIOR RELIABILITY

or
TWINKLE, TWINKLE LITTLE CRAFT

Dr. Anthony Mirarchi was not the average scientist. He knew about the fireball
sightings in the southwest and he was skeptical, all right, but he was also skeptical of the
glib explanations that had been offered. Before deciding what the fireballs and "disc
variation" might be he wanted more data. In early 1950 he was the Chief of the Air
Composition Branch at Geophysical Research Division (GRD) at the Air Force Cambridge Research
Laboratory (AFCRL) in Cambridge, Mass. Twinkle began as Dr. Mirarchi's project. However,
he retired from AFCRL in October, 1950, so he did not write the final report. That duty
fell to the next project director, Dr. Louis Elterman. This final report has an important
place in UFO history. Had Mirarchi written the report the history of early UFO research
might be different. However, as you will see, Elterman did write it and, in doing so, left
out the important information you are about to read. (Dr. Elterman and the project's final
report are discussed below.)

Dr. Mirarchi visited Holloman Air Force Base in late May, 1950, and requested a brief
report on sightings which had occurred on April 27 and May 24. Fortunately for "the truth,"
this brief report to Mirarchi survived in the National Archives microfilm record where it was
found in the late 1970's, long after the Twinkle report had had its...intended?... debunking
effect on the green fireball and disc sightings! The report reads as follows (see also
copies from the Archives microfilm below):



" 1. Per request of Dr. A. 0. Mirarchi, during a recent visit to this base, the
following information is submitted.

2. Sightings were made on 27 April and 24 May 1950 of aerial phenomena during
morning daylight hours at this station. The sightings were made by Land-Air, Inc.,
personnel while engaged in tracking regular projects with Askania Phototheodolites.
It has been reported that objects are sighted in some number; as many as eight have
been visible at one time. The individuals making these sightings are professional
observers. Therefore I would rate their reliability superior. In both cases photos
were taken with Askanias.

3. The Holloman AF Base Data Reduction Unit analyzed the 27 April pictures and
made a report, a copy of which I am enclosing with the film for your information.

It was believed that triangulation could be effected from pictures taken on 24 May
because pictures were taken from two stations. The films were rapidly processed
and examined by Data Reduction. However, it was determined that sightings were made
on two different objects and triangulation could not be effected. A report from Data
Reduction and the films from the sighting are enclosed.

4., There is nothing further to report at this time."
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The writer of this cover letter is not known (no signature). It might have been the
Lt. Albert mentioned in the document below. The Data Reduction report attached to the letter reads as

follows:
"Objects observed following MX776A test of 27 April 1950"

2nd Lt. (name censored) EHOSIR 15 May 50

1. According to conversation between Col. Baynes and Capt. Bryant, the following



information is submitted directly to Lt. Albert.
2. Film from station P10 was read, resulting in azimuth and elevation angles being
recorded on four objects. 1In addition, size of image on film was recorded.
3. From this information, together with a single azimuth angle from station M7, the
following conclusions were drawn:
a). The objects were at an altitude of approximately 150,000 ft.
b). The objects were over the Holloman range between the base and Tularosa Peak.
c). The objects were approximately 30 feet in diameter
d). The objects were traveling at an undeterminable, yet high speed.

(signed)
Wilbur L. Mitchell
Mathematician

Data Reduction Unit
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So, there you have it, four unidentified objects... UFOs... were flying at 150,000 ft
near the White Sands Proving Ground. Each was roughly 30 ft in size. (The sighting was
similar to that of Charles B. Moore while tracking a high altitude balloon in April, 1949.)
Could Mr. Mitchell and the Askania operators have made a mistake? Not likely. Their business
was tracking fast moving rockets and calculating the trajectories of the rockets. As
the writer of the above letter stated, "The individuals making these sightings are
professional observers. Therefore I would rate their reliability superior.”

Human beings had made no objects that could fly at 150,000 ft in the spring of 195e@.
So, what were they? Whose were they?

The skeptical scientist might, at this point, question the ability of Askania cameras
to accurately image some object at 150,000 ft (28 statute miles). Just what was the
capability of a phototheodolite? 1In fact, one might wonder just what IS a phototheodolite?



The phototheodolite is a telescope which does two things at once as the operator points
it toward the object of interest (usually a rocket). First, the phototheodolite (or
cinetheodolite) makes of series of photos (or a movie) of what is being seen through the
telescope. Typically the camera takes a picture (or many pictures) every second. The
shutter (exposure) times for all active phototheodolites at a test site such as White Sands
are controlled electronically by a central "time keeper". Thus all the camera pictures are
synchronized. The phototheodolite also accurately measures and records on the film, the
azimith and elevation (horizontal and vertical pointing directions) as time goes on. When
two or more of these cameras are pointed at the same object, say a rocket traveling into
space, the elevation and azimuth information that is recorded can be used to accurately
determine the position (altitude and horizontal position relative to the cameras) every
second by triangulation (a well known trigonometric technique). Thus these cameras can
provide information on the flight of a rocket, i.e., at any instant how high it is, how
far it has traveled downrange, what the exhaust of the rocket looks like (an important
"diagnostic" for determining how well the fuel was burning, how accurately the rocket nozzles
were directing the exhaust, etc.) and whether or not the rocket was rotating or tumbling as
it traveled. As an example of such a camera in action, consider the following composite
photograph:
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Here we see a rocket just after takeoff (lowest photo) and then several photos taken




many seconds later as it climbed upward. The number at the upper left is the azimuth and the
number at the upper right is the angular elevation. According to the text that accompanies
the picture, the top photo was taken when the rocket was nearing burnout. Burnout of a V-2
occurred when the altitude was about 20 miles and the rocket was about 2 miles downrange.
However, the actual altitude when that photo may have been less than that. (Apparently this
camera was quite far from the takeoff point in order to capture a reasonable "side shot" of
the rocket at burnout.)

The rocket itself was about 46 ft long and 5 ft in diameter (at its widest). Looking
at the top photo of the rocket one can clearly see the general shape, although it is distorted
(foreshortened) by the perspective view (from below and to one side). Had the rocket
presented the same perspective view but from a distance of about 30 miles (150,000 ft) the
image would not be as large as in the upper photo, but the general shape could still be
determined from the image (which would have been clearer in the original film than in this

copy).

The focal length of the typical telescope was 60 cm. One may assume that the 35 mm film
used had an image size resolution, determined by the average film grain size, of 0.001 cm
(0.01 mm or 10 microns), or less (if high resolution film was used the grain size could be as
small as about 5 microns). Assuming ©.001 cm resolution at the film plane, the angular
resolution was on the order of ©.001 cm/60 cm = 1.6 x 107-5 radians = 0.0009 degrees which is
about 3 arc-second resolution (1 arc-sec = 0.00028 deg). When this distance is projected to
150,000 ft it corresponds to about 2 1/2 ft. This is a "resolution element"” at that distance.
Hence it is not surprising that the film image discussed above is a quite good representation
of the shape of the V-2 rocket at a high altitude.

An object 30 ft in diameter would have 12 of these resolution elements across its width,
and about 140 such elements over the whole image area (if roughly round) which would be more
than enough to assure that the film image would be clearly show the the overall shape
of the object. (If the film resolution were better than 10 microns the number of resolution
elements in the image would be even greater. The more resolution elements there are, the
more accurate is the depiction of the actual shape of the object.) The bottom line is that it
is very UNLIKELY that the expert analysts at White Sands were wrong when they stated that
the objects were about 150,000 ft high and about 30 ft in diameter (and traveling at a high
speed).

A DISMAL FAILURE?

...or a COVER UP?

Enter Dr. Louis Elterman, a well known atmospheric physicist. Elterman was known
for using powerful searchlights to study the upper atmosphere (density, dust loading, etc.).
He also wrote a report on ball lightning for Project Grudge, the second Air Force project to
collect and analyze flying saucer sightings, so he obviously knew the official opinion of
the Air Force on flying saucers, namely that there weren't/aren't any. (The Project
Grudge personnel did not look favorably on saucer reports.) A year and a half after the
above sightings, in November, 1951, Dr. Elterman, who was at that time the Director of Project
Twinkle, and who worked at the Atmospheric Physics Laboratory (APL) of the Geophysical Research
Division (GRD) of the Air Force Cambridge Research Laboratory (AFCRL), wrote the final report
on Project Twinkle. According to Dr. Elterman's report, Project Twinkle was a dismal failure:
"no information was gained."” He recommended it be discontinued. His recommendation was
accepted.

But, was it a failure? Was there really no information gained? Notice that the
above document says that as many as 8 objects were sighted at one time on May 24, 1950. This
statement is confirmed in an FBI report entitled "Information Concerning Phenomena in New
Mexico," written on August 23, 1950. According to the report, "On May 24, 1950, personnel
of Land-Air, Incorporated, sighted eight to ten objects of aerial phenomena." 1Isn't the fact
of the sighting "information?" Of course it is. Then, why did Elterman write "no information
was gained?" Let us look more carefully at Elterman and his Project Twinkle report.

According to Dr. Elterman, before Twinkle began there had been "an abnormal number of
reports" from Vaughn, New Mexico, so it was decided to place a lookout post there. Why this
place was chosen is a mystery to me. It is about 120 air miles from Los Alamos, about 90 from
Sandia Base and nearly 150 from Alamogordo/Holloman AFB. I have listed above the sighting



statistics for the various New Mexico areas, being careful to list the sightings around Vaughn
separately. Note that Vaughn had only 1 sighting in the whole previous year. So why did they
"waste" a lookout post at Vaughn? Why didn't they put one at Los Alamos or at White Sands?

Did they think that they could triangulate over a very large baseline distance with the lookout
post at Holloman AFB or were they actually trying to avoid sightings? These are questions
which must forever remain unanswered. (Note: Elterman was not responsible for this poor

choice of location since he did not become the Project director until about 7 months after

athe project started.)

Anyway, it was a mistake. After Project Twinkle began the sighting rate dropped
precipitously. The Project Blue Book sighting list shows 1 sighting in April, 1 in May and 1
in August in the Holloman area. There were also fewer sightings in the other areas. 1In fact,
for the period from April 1 to October 1 covered by the first Land Air contract there were
only about 8 sightings in the whole of New Mexico as compared with the roughly 30 sightings
during the previous 6 months.

The effect of this sudden decrease in sighting rate is reflected in the Twinkle Final
Report which says that there were very few observations. However, of more importance is what
is not reflected in the report, that is, what is ignored or covered up (?) in the
report, namely the fact that Twinkle was successful.

To demonstrate that Dr. Elterman "ignored information" or was just plain dishonest, I
quote here one part of the report verbatim. Commenting on the "first contractual period, 1
April 1950 to 15 September 1950" Dr. Elterman wrote:

"Some photographic activity occurred on 27 April and 24 May, but simultaneous
sightings by both cameras were not made, so that no information was gained.
On 30 August 1950, during a Bell aircraft missile launching, aerial phenomena were
observed over Holloman Air Force Base by several individuals; however, neither Land-Air
nor Project personnel were notified and, therefore, no results were acquired. On 31
August 1950, the phenomena were again observed after a V-2 launching. Although much film
was expended, proper triangulation was not effected, so that again no information was
acquired.”

During the second contractual period, 1 October 1950 to 31 March 1951 there were no
sightings. It was as if the phenomenon had reacted to the setting up of observation posts by
moving elsewhere. There were continuing sightings in other parts of the country and even a few
in the other parts of New Mexico, but none near Holloman AFB. The lack of sightings was enough
to end the contract. After the contract ended there were discussions about what to do with the
data and whether or not to continue observations at at some low level of effort. It was
decided in the late spring of 1951 not to continue the special effort. Elterman, writing in
November, 1951, recommended "no further expenditure" of time and effort...and there was none.

But, what about the sightings during the first half of the contract, the sightings at
Holloman Air Force base in April, May and August, 1950? Even Elterman admits that things
were seen!

According to Eltermann, no information was gained, to which I respond,

WHAT?

What do you mean, Dr. Elterman, Sir?
Oh, Great and Exalted Guru of the Upper Atmosphere,

isn't the fact that something unusual was sighted by experienced observers "information"?

Something WAS up in the sky...

something that was sufficiently unusual as to attract attention.



Was Elterman justified in making such a comment?

No! Certainly information "is gained" when a number of qualified obervers
simultaneously view unidentified objects from various locations. And more information is
gained if some of these observers film these objects through cinetheodolite telescopes.
There is useful information even if a "proper triangulation" is not accomplished. And
there is even more information gained if a proper triangulation is accomplished...and one
was accomplished, only Eltermann didn't mention it!

Farther on in the report Dr. Elterman indicates a serious deficiency in the operational
plan for Project Twinkle. The project scientists knew that they might have some film to
analyze, but according Elterman there were insufficient funds built into the contract to
analyze the film. After a discussion with Mr. Warren Kott, who was in charge of the Land-Air
operations, Elterman estimated that it would take 30 man-days to analyze the film and do a
time correlation study which "would assure that these records did not contain significant
material." According to Elterman, "no provisions are contained in the contract" for this
analysis.

One reads this previous statment with some astonishment. They set up a
photographically instrumented search for unknown objects and then failed to provide
for the film analysis if they were lucky enough to get film. What sort of a scientific
project is that? Did they want to succeed or did they want to fail?

Furthermore, Elterman's statement that a time correlation study should be done to
assure that the records contained no significant material sounds as if Elterman
had already concluded that there was no worthwhile evidence in the film. Does this sound
like an unbiased investigation?

Near the end of the report Elterman supported his statement that "no information was
gained" by offering explanations for the sightings: "Many of the sightings are attributable to
natural phenomena such as flights of birds, planets, meteors and possibly cloudiness."” Note
that he wrote "many." He did not write "all." What about the sightings that were NOT
attributable to birds, planets, meteors and cloudiness?

The typical scientist reading the Project Twinkle Final Report would assume Elterman
was telling the truth, that there was "no information gained" and that all the sightings were
misidentifications. The typical reader would accept Dr. Elterman's opinion as the final word
on the subject. Only the perceptive person would realize that he had not actually proven his
statement to be true, even though he presumably had access to the photographic evidence which
would prove it, if it were true.

Compare the above letter/report to Dr. Mirarchi with the first paragraph of Elterman's
statement where he says "...simultaneous sightings by both cameras were not made so that no
information was gained." It seems that Elterman got his information on these sightings from
this report to Dr. Mirarchi. Yet he did not even give a hint of the existence of the most
important result of Project Twinkle, the April 27 triangulation which yielded information on
altitude and size. Could it be that he didn't know about the Data Reduction Unit report? Or
did he know and choose to purposely ignore or withhold the information? Was this part of
a "cover up" or simply the "ostrich effect" kicking in (if you stick your head deep enough
into the sand the problem will go away)?

Capt. Edward Ruppelt, who was the director of Project Blue book during 1952 and 1953,
in his landmark 1955 book, The Report on Unidentified Flying Objects, described the
April 27 event in more detail. A guided missile had just been tracked and the cinethodolite
crews were starting to unload their cameras when someone spotted objects moving through the
sky. The camera stations were linked by a telephone network, so that crew alerted the others.
Unfortunately all but one camera had been unloaded and the UFOs had departed before the other
cameras could be reloaded. According to Ruppelt, "The photos from the one station showed only
a smudgy dark object. About all the film proved was that something was in the air and,
whatever it was, it was moving." Evidently Ruppelt didn't know that a triangulation had been
accomplished. But at least Ruppelt did not claim that "no information was gained."

Ruppelt also discussed the May 24 event and its failure at triangulation due to the
fact that the two cameras were looking at different objects. Ruppelt wrote that in February,
1951, when he first learned of these sightings (this was about 9 months before he became the
director of Project Grudge and over a year before the name was changed to Blue Book), "The
records at AMC [the Air Materiel Command headquartered at Wright-Patterson Air Force Base]
didn't contain the analysis of these films but they did mention the Data Reduction Group at
White Sands. So, when I later took over the UFO investigation I made several calls in an
effort to run down the actual film and analysis." Unfortunately, he was not successful even
though he did manage to contact, through a "major who was very cooperative," two men who had



analyzed what was either the May 24, or the August 31, film or both (see Elterman's
statement above regarding the August 31 sighting). Ruppelt writes as follows:

"(the major's) report.... was what I had expected - nothing concrete except that the
UFOs were unknowns. He did say that by putting a correction factor in the data gathered
by the two cameras they were able to arrive at a rough estimate of speed, altitude and
size. The UFO was 'higher than 40,000 feet, traveling over 2,000 miles per hour, and it
was over 300 feet in diameter.' He cautioned me that these figures were only estimates,
based on the possibly erroneous correction factor; therefore they weren't proof of
anything - except that something was in the air."

Obviously Ruppelt underplayed the importance of this report by suggesting that the films
didn't prove anything. My response to this is

So what, if the size, distance and speed estimates might be wrong....
something was there, obviously large, fast and unusual or the camera crews wouldn't have
bothered to film 1it!

Since Ruppelt apparently was not aware that a triangulation had been accomplished for
the April 27 sighting one wonders if he would have tried to downplay that film, also, as not
"proof of anything."

At the bottom of the report to Dr. Mirachi is a list of enclosures which shows that two
reports (Data Red Report #1 and Data Red Report #2) and three films (P-10 and P-8 of May 24
and P-10 of April 27) were sent to Mirarchi along with a map of the Holloman range showing,
I presume, the locations of the cameras. There is a hand written note at the right of the
list of films which says "Film on repository with AFCRL" and a few other undecipherable
scribbles.  Attempts (in the late 1970's) to locate these films failed. (Mirarchi died
in the 1960's.)

Incidently, the Project Blue Book master sighting list indicates that all four of the
sightings listed by Elterman had "insufficient information" for evaluation.

EPILOGUE

Although Dr. Mirarchi retired in October 1950 and had no part in writing the final
Twinkle report that was completed over a year later, his involvement with the green fireballs
and saucers did not end when he retired. In early 1951 he returned to "action" in a public
way and his actions nearly got him into serious trouble almost two years after that!

In the middle of February, 1951 Time magazine published an article that featured a
well known scientist, Dr. Urner Liddel of the Naval Research Laboratory near Washington, DC.
In the article Dr. Liddel stated that he had studied around 2,000 saucer reports and, in his
opinion, the only credible saucer sightings were actually sightings of misidentified Skyhook
balloons, balloons which had been kept secret by the armed services. Apparently Dr. Liddel
wasn't aware of the several sightings by balloon project scientists (e.g, C. B. Moore
mentioned above).

Evidently Dr. Mirarchi felt it was his civic duty to repudiate Liddel's claims and
two weeks later he responded publicly. According to a United Press story filed on February
26, 1951 Mirarchi said he believed, after investigating 300 reports of flying saucers, that
the saucers were missiles from Russia which had photographed our atomic bomb test sites.
According to the United Press article the 40 year old scientist who "for more than a year
conducted a top secret investigation into the weird phenomena said that he had worked with
balloons and balloons did not leave an exhaust trail.” Another reason given against the
balloon explanation was that balloons could not be seen at night. Mirachi explained how
"scientists had picked up dust particles containing copper which could have come from no other
source than the saucer motive plants (the engines)." (This was a reference to efforts by Dr.
La Paz to have air samples taken after a green fireball sighting to see if there were any small



particles of copper or copper compounds in the air. Such compounds "burn green" or give off a
characteristic green color when heated, so La Paz had conjectured that the green color could be
attributed to burning copper compounds associated with the fireballs. 1In one case there was
success in detecting such particles, although La Paz was not completely convinced that the
particles were from the fireball.)

According to the newspaper article "flying saucers or 'fireballs' as he terms them,
were regularly observed near Los Alamos until he set up a system of phototheodolites to
measure their speed, size and distance away.... but the fireballs mysteriously ceased
appearing before the theodolites could go to work. Dr. Mirarchi concludes that spies must
have tipped off the saucers' home base.” Mirarchi referred to two sightings for which
there was photographic evidence: a single photo of a round glowing object and a motion picture
which "showed one streaking across the sky for one and a half minutes.” Mirarchi went
on to say that he was aware that some sightings were actually sightings of balloons, but that
"there was too much evidence in favor of saucers to say they could have all been balloons.

'I was conducting the main investigation. The government had to depend on me or my branch for
information.' He said he did not see how the Navy (i.e., Dr Liddel) could say that there had
been no concrete evidence on the existence of the phenomena."

Mirachi concluded by accusing the government of committing "suicide by secrecy" for not
admitting that the saucers were real and probably missiles from Russia.

Strong words! So strong they nearly got Mirarchi in trouble more than two years later.
According to an Air Force document released in 1991(!), in 1953, during a time of espionage
and spy hunting (the Rosenbergs, atomic spies, were executed in 1953) the FBI queried the Air
Force as to whether or not Mirarchi should be investigated for breaking security. Lt. Col.
Frederick Oder, who had been instrumental in getting Project Twinkle started, responded by
writing that, because Mirarchi had released to the newspaper some information that was
classified Confidential or Secret it "could cause serious harm to the internal security of the
country...if it were to fall into unfriendly hands...both from the point of view of the
prestige of our Government and the point of view of revealing our interest in certain
classified projects." Brigadier General W. M. Garland, who was in charge of AMC in 1953,
decided not to pursue Dr. Mirarchi because, in his opinion, the information was not that
important. Furthermore, in Gen. Garlands' opinion, the facts about saucers being missiles,
as stated in the newspaper article, had been "disproved or are, at best, personal opinions,
and are not considered classified data." 1In other words, Gen. Garland apparently believed
that the green fireball and saucer sightings were not Russian missiles, although he did not
say what he thought they were.

Perhaps Gen. Garland let Mirarchi of the hook because he recalled that there had been a
recommendation to declassify and release the results of Project Twinkle in December, 1951, a
month after the final report was written. However, he could find no record of declassification
in the files of AMC. Evidently he was not aware of the recommendation against
declassification contained in a February 1952 letter to the Directorate of Intelligence from
the Directorate of Research and Development which states

"The Scientific Advisory Board Secretariat has suggested that this project not be
declassified for a variety of reasons, chief among which is that no scientific explanation for
any of the 'fireballs' and other phenomena was revealed by the (Project Twinkle) report and
that some reputable scientists still believe that the observed phenomena are man-made."

Another letter, this time from the Directorate of Intelligence to the Research Division
of the Directorate of Research and Development, dated March 11, 1952, adds another reason
for withholding the information from the public:

"It is believed that a release of the information to the public in its present condition would
cause undue speculation and give rise to unwarranted fears among the populace such as occurred
in previous releases on unidentified flying objects. This results from releases when there has
been no real solution.”

In other words, Air Force Intelligence had realized that the public could see through
the smokescreen of previous explanations and wanted real answers, so, if they couldn't come
up with real answers it was better to say nothing.

Over a year after Mirarchi responded to Liddel, LIFE Magazine published an article on
flying saucers. 1In that article the authors described some of the sightings which caused the
Air Force to start Project Twinkle. One of the hundreds of letters which the magazine
received in response to that article was from Captain Daniel McGovern who wrote "I was very
closely associated with Projects 'Twinkle' and 'Grudge' at Alamogordo, N. Mexico where I was
chief of the technical photographic facility at Holloman Air Force Base. I have seen several
of these objects myself  and they are everything you say they are as to shape, size and speed."



(LIFE, April 28, 1952)
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FOR FURTHER INFORMATION ON FLYING SAUCERS IN THE YEAR FOLLOWING
MIRARCHI'S RESPONSE TO LIDDEL see
click here

APPENDIX

As a matter of historical interest I present here s ome of the information collected by
the FBI before and during the time of Project Twinkle. The FBI was responsible for protecting
"vital installations” (laboratories and military bases where nuclear weapons were designed and stored)
from spies and Soviet communist subversive actrivities. Therefore FBI agents attended meetings of
Air Force and Army intelligence and security organizations at these installations. As mentioned
at the beginning of this article, a new phenomenon was reported numerous times starting in December,
1948: "green fireballs" were seen by numerous people including many security guards at the
vital installations.The people who were in charge of security for
installations in the southwest worried about the "green fireballs" (and "disc variation"). No one knew
what these thhings were, leaving open the possibility that the Soviets could be involved. Therefore
the FBI was interested in keeping track of the developments. The first mention in the FBI file of this
fireball situation is in a document dated January 31, 1949, entitled "Protection of Vital
Installations.” This document is shown below. The name which was blacked out at the beginning
of the fifth paragraph is that of Dr. Lincoln LaPaz, a famous meteoricist (a person who studies
meteors and meteorites; the FBI document incorrectly refers to him as a "meteorologist"). (His
name and other names were blacked out - censored - of the FBI documents before they were
released to me under the Freedom of Information Act in the spring of 1977). Note that subject
matter was considered "Top Secret" by intelligence officers of the Air Force and Army.
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The subject was again brought to the attention of the FBI on Feb. 10, 1949. In the document
below the research done by Dr. Lincoln LaPaz is again mentioned. Moreover, LaPaz by this time
had generated a rather frightening theory to explain the green fireballs: they could be Soviet
missiles (suborbital bombs) that were being used to target the "vital installations.”
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On 2/6/4L9 PAUL RYaN, Cffice of Special Investigations, Roswell, New Yexico, advised
the resident azent at Roswell that he had just left a conference with Dr. LINCOLN
in FAZ, Uetecrslogist, who has written a letter sumzarizing the search for the
Unidentified .erial Phenamena",
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RYAN advised that Dr. LA PAZ came to Roswell after one of these oblects had
the Roswell area the night of Jaruary 30, 1949,

been chserved by several persons in

at approximately 6:00 P..,
CSI Investigator who stated the cbject appeared to explode or

walker Air Force Zase at Roswell, New lexico,

AYai informed that all of his agents had been searchins the area

Artesia, Tatum, and Kenna, lNew llexico; Azherst, Ercwnfield, and
where the phercmena had recently been cbserved. These

negative results.

Cne of these persons who witnessed the obiect was an

(diss\ﬂ_,ﬁ‘ mte;r:ear the

arourd Roswell,

Lamesa, Texas,
searches all met with

Dr. L4 FAZ advanced the theory to RYAli that the oblects were controlled missiles
traveling around the earth at an altitude of appraximately .25 miles and at a

speed of appreximately 15 miles per secord.

The missile was probably controlled

by azents stationed at various irtervals who are able to bring the missile down

. over a desigrnated area and explode it,

He stated that Dr, L4 PAZ added that he

believed the Russians or scue other count ry was practicing with these weapons

wiich carried ro war head and were beinz exploded at an altitude
After the practice period LA PAZ assumed the weapons would be loaded

10 miles,

. with an atomic war head,

14 PAZ told RYAN that two men whom he interviewed at Kenna, New Lexico
had observed phenomena which appeared to have disseminated near Tatunm
| Hexdeco, had informed him "nothing will be found".
| signifiecance to the above statement ard that the men
rnowledge that the phenomena was not a meteorite.
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In a letter from the Special Agent in Charge (SAC) at San Antonio, TX, the FBI learned from
the Fourth Army intelligence officers that the "flying discs, Flying saucers and "balls of light" were
now referred to as "Unconventional Aircraft" and the effort to understand them was called
"Project Grudge." (Students of UFO history will recall that the first publicly known Air Force

project to investigate "flying saucers" was called Project Sign; it ran from January 1948 to
early 1949 when the name was changed to Project Grudge.)
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Re San gntonic letter to the :ﬁlreﬁt.ar de_ted January 31, 1949, which outlined
discussion had at recent weclly Intelligence Conferences of G-2, OHI, 0SI and
FEI in the Fourth .my Area concerning "WUnidentified Aircrafti® or "U:“,identified
Areial Phenomenal ethermsise lnoun as "{lying discst, "Plying saucers! and "balls
of fire", Ii is repeated that this matier is cnnuidered secrct by Intellipence
L’.hfmara of both t-he Army and the Air Force.

G2, hth smy, has nevi advised that the above matier is now termed “Unconven—
tionel fircraft! and investigotions concerning such matters heve been given
the name WProject Grudge!,

G-2, 4th Aruy, advised on February 16, 1949, o conference was held ot Los
wlemos, Hew llexico, to consider the eo—called "Green fire bzll phenomenah
widch began about December 5, 1948. It was brought cut this question has been
classified "secret" and that investigation is now the primary ressonsibility
of the U,5. M_r Force, JAdr La.t.eriel Command, T-2.

i : of the University of New lexico, discussed one siting which
ha Limself hed made which was termed the "Starvation peak incident" and des-
cribed the following characteristics which indicated that the phenomenon
could not be classified as z normal meteorite fall,

1. There was an initial bright light (no period of intensity increase)
and constant intensity during the dursation of the phenomenon.

2, Yellow green color about 5200 Angsbtroms.

3. Essentially horizontal path.

L. Trajectory traversed at constant angular velocity.
5. Duration about tuo sccﬁnds.
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DIRECTOR, FBI Uareh 22, 1949

It was broucht out that siinee Decomber 5, 1948 there have been mor¢ than

tcn incidents analagous to the "green fireball” above described and some

tirenty others with miner doviatlons from the above, It is ~lso pointeod out
ot the only sitings which had occurred seemed to have been confined to the

Los ilamos, Las Vegas, and 'iest Texos triangle, ~

-2 also advised thet as of Novamber 1, 1948, information had been reeeived
A Trom higher liilitery suthoritics thot the Air Force had advised thet such
/ (8itings occur prEEEEEEII?“EEH"Ehat another poried of sitings was thon
i imninent, Further, on Februzry 14, 1949, higher Hilitory suthorities advised
that it was believed thot ultimetely it would be found that the phenomena
in qucstion have & naturel ciplanation,

Tt is further noted thet ebout T:30 paom., Uoreh 6, 1949, what was ot first

| thought to be & flarc was scen spproximately onc-holf nile north of Killeen

i Bose in the area of tho Vitel Installotion ot Camp Hood, Texas, and 2 sceond

. flore uas noticed ot 1:45 a.mn., larch 7, 1949, soproximetcly thrce miles from
Killcen Pasc. TI% has since been concluded thet the flores scen neor Killcen

i arc probably similer to the phenomena previously noted in the Los Alamos,

| Sendin Beosc Areca althouch thess cre the first sitings of such phutnomens near
Camp Hood,.

a There appcars o be rcason to believe thot the above-mentloncd phenomens may
| be conncetod with scerct experiments being conduetcd by some U.S. Government
szency as it is belicved thot the United Steotss is farther sdvanced in guided
missile devclopment thon any forcign povicr.

Although the primsry rosponsibility for investigoting such maticrs is nowr
with the U.S. A.F. Mir Hatericl Comiand, G-2, 4th Army is.still intcrested
in being adviscd of any further sitings of such phcnomcna vhich might be
observed,




Skipping over many months and many UFO sighting reports one finds the next major mention of
this subject in an FBI letter dated August 23, 1950. (The reader will recall that Project
Twinkle started in March, 1950.) During 1949 and 1950 the continued sightings of these strange phenomena
had caused the security agencies some concern since there was no good explanation. Their
concern is echoed in the document below. Evidently Dr. La Paz was still considering the
possibility that the fireballs were Soviet guided missiles. The document mentions the
contract with Land-Air to carry out a 24 hour skywatch called "Project Twinkle." This document
also refers to the May 24 sighting of numerous "objects of aerial phenomena." The name
that appears crossed out in the last page is probably that of Anthony Mirachi, the
Project Engineer.
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o cduise that: {l) OST has erpressed concern ino!'?ﬂ"’-':. @ _‘;-- !
1connection with the continued Gppearance of unexplained phendmeng’

i described as green Sireballs, discs and meteors e Inity g, por

) o/ sensitive installations in New Merico. (2) g Yeteor
c Lzpert of the University of New Nexico, reported that the Phenomena
. does not appear to be of meteoric ‘origin. (3) ST has contracted
with Land-4ir Inc., Alamogordo, Kew KVexico, to mcke scientific S
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NATURE OF PHENOGIENA

; A Observations of cerial phenomena occurring within the

i3 vicinity of sensitive installations hape been recorded by the
e e Air Force since December, 1945, The phenomena have been
' k"ﬁa classified into 3 general types which are ideatified as Jollows:

s Sreen SJireballs, objects moving @t high speed
in shapes resembling half moons, circles and discs emitiing
green light,

1 £. Discs, round Slat shaped objects or bhenomena
? moving at fast velocity and emitting ¢ brifliant white light
i or reflected light.

S. lMeteors, acerial bhenomenc resembling meteoric -
meterial moving at high velocity and varying in color.

- The above phenomena have been reported to wvery in ;
color from brilliont white %o amber, red and green. e

i s - s o i

Since 1948, approxrimately 150 chservations of aerial
phenomena referred to above have been recorded in the vicinity .
of installations in New Mexrico. A number of observations have
been reported by different reliable individuclis at approximately

the same time. -
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EeSULTS OF AN IWIUIRY BY PROFESSOR LINCOLN L4 FAZ
-F'p_ L. Erot ey
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Institute of leteoritics,

University vew lexico, submitted an analysis of the various i
observations on May 23, 1950. He concluded, as a result of r
his investigation, that epproximately half of the phenomena :
recorded were of meteoric origin. The other phenomena i
commonly referred to as green firebolls or dises he believed 4

to be U.8. puided miss

1= Lio tested. in the neighborhood i
of the installations. [ . pointed out that if he were i
wrong In interpreting Iae phehomena as eriginating with U.S.
gutded missiles that a systemotic investigation of the obsgr="
vations should be made immediately. e Y ointed out that
missiles moving with the velocities o the order of those ' 3
Jound for the green fireballs end discg could travel from the .
Ural region of the USSR to New Merico in less than 15 minutes.
He suggested that the observations might be of guided missiles
{ {aunched from bases in the Urals. e

On the basis of the investigations made by £ o
aend the Air Force, it was concluded that the occurrence of the
unerplained phenomena in the vicinity of sensitive installations
035 @ cause for concern. The Air Force entered inte g contract
with Land-dir, Incorporated, Alamogorde, New Merico, for the
. purpose of making scientific studies of the green fireballs cnd .
}ﬂ discs. It was pointed out in +he summary furnished by 05T on :

- VA dJuly 19, 1950, that the unexplained green fireballs and discs é
_;;qrﬁ |jjere still observed in the vicinity of sensitive military and F
LAY a»““j | Gopernment installations.

\ o

RESULTS OF AIR FORCE INVESTIGATION . e I RE

The Air Force together with Land-4ir, Incorporated,
have established a number of observation posts in the vicinity .
of Vaughn, WNew Mexico, for the purpose of photographing and :
determining the speed, height and nature of the unusual ;
[ phenomena referred to as green fireballs and discs. On oy 24, €— _

1950, personnel of Land-4ir, Incorporated, sighted & to 10 e
objects of aerial phenomena. 4 Zd-hour day wetch is being -
maintained and has been designated “¥Frojec

t Twinkle."
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The Albuguerque Office, in a letter dated August 10, '
150, advised that there have-been no new developments in connection |
with the efforts to ascertain the tdentity of the strange aerial
pPhenomena referred tp as > rFireballs and discs. The Albugquergue
0ffice advised that £ . Wroject Engineer,

had been informed of Saiction relative to espionage

and sabotage and errangemente have been made so that the Sureay

will be promptly advised in the event ‘additional infornation relative -
to this project indicates any Jurisdiction on the part of the

Bureau. :

e BUTEGUd Juri

i

/ None. The above is for your information.




The last mention in the FBI file of Project Twinkle is in a letter dated October 9, 1950.
Note that the FBI uses the term "complaints" to refer to reports of these unusual phenomena
(saucers, discs, fireballs, etc.). According to the document there had been no new developments.
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To advise you of the most recent informtion novm to the
Bureau concerning the capu:.oned aerial phenomena. _
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BACKGROUND

You will recall that on August 23, 1950, I furnished to you a
memorandum regarding Projeet Twinkle set up by the Department of the
Air Force, with the assistance of Land-Alr, Inc., at Vaughn, New Mexico,
for the purpose of obtaining data regarding these unusuwal aerial phenomena
wiich had been seen in the vicinity of sensitive installaticons in New
Hexico. To date the Lir Force has not advised us of any new developments
in cormect:r.m with this projec‘ﬁ.“'"'"“ R

e

Project Engineer of Project Twinkle, has
been conta que Office and arrangerents have been made in
order that the Buraau will be advised in the event any information relative
to these phenomena indicates any Jjurisdiction on the pert of the Bureau.

According to Bureau files, an average nf approxdmately three or
four complaints have been received per month from June through September.
~These complaints were brought to the attention of 0SI. A review of Bureau files
does not indicate that there has besn amy increcase in the sightings of these
Ehenamen& during or ag & result of the war in Korea.

JURTSDICTION FOR INVESTIGATION OF THESE FHENOMENA

these aerial phenomena is the jurisdiction of the Department of the 4ir Fores.
The Department of the Air Force is aware of owr jurisdiction in matters
relating to espionage, sabotage and intermal security, and we have contacted
05I and requested them to advise us of any developments in connection with

u "You will recall the investigation to o‘btain information concerning

these phencmena which would be of interest to us as a result of our i
Jjurisdiction. ‘ e
. [ g Sl —
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POSSIELE ORIGIN OF THESE AERIAL PHEMNOLTNA

The Bureau has beemn advised in the past by 0SI that many of the
sightings reported to them were determined by investigation to Fave been
of weather ballocns, falling stars, meteorological mienomena and other air-borne

objects.

TUFORVATION OBTATHED BY BURFAU LIATSON FROM OSI, WASITNGTON, D. c3
RE THE CAPIICNCD LATTERS OF OCTOBER O, 1950.

: Bureau liaison deterrdined on:the morning of October O, 1950 from
08I heacquarters that the investigations of these aecrizl rhenomena*are being
handled by 0SI, Vright Field, Chioc. Their investigation of these

phenomena fails to indicate that the sightings involved spece ships or
missiles from any other planet or country.
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According to 0SI, the complaints received by them have failed to
indicate any definite pattern of activity. OSI further advised they are closely
following the investigation of the ecaptioned matters, and they will advise this
Bureau of any matters of interest.

ACTION

None. The above is for your information.







